HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING
AGENDA
Hamilton High School Library
Wednesday, October 3, 2018

5:30 p-m. Open session
No earlier than 5:35 p.m. Closed session to discuss closed session items listed below

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

v.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

OPENING BUSINESS:
Call to order and roll cali

Gabriel Leal, President Rosalinda Sanchez Tomas Loera
Hubert “Wendall” Lower, Clerk Rod Boone

PUBLIC SESSION/FLAG SALUTE:
ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M)

PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be heard
(agenda and non-agenda items). The Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15
minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon.

ACTION ITEMS:

1. Agreement for Professional Bond Services, Hamilton Unified School District and Dannis Woliver Kelley (DWK) &
Attachment “A” Scope of Work and Fees. (page 1-5)

2. Resolution 18-19-105 Rural School Bus Pilot Project. (page 6)

IDENTIFY CLOSED SESSION ITEMS:

PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: Public comment will be heard on any closed session items. The board may
limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15 minutes per item.

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: To consider qualified matters.

1. Government Code Section 54957.6, Labor Negotiations. To confer with the District’s Labor Negotiator, Superintendent
Charles Tracy regarding HTA and CSEA negotiations.

2. Government Code Section 54957 (b), Personnel Issue. To consider the employment, evaluation, reassignment,
resignation, dismissal, or discipline of a classified and certificated employees.

3. Government Code Section 54956.9, Subdivision (a), Existing litigation. Name of case: Crews v. Hamilton Unified School
District, Glenn County Superior Court, Case No. 15CV01394.

4. Conference with Real Property Negotiators. Property: Westermann property north of Hamilton High School,
approximately located at 500 Sixth Street, Hamilton City, CA 95951 (APN: 032-230-015-000). Agency Negotiator:
Charles Tracy, Superintendent; Matt Juhl-Darlington, Attorney for District. Negotiating Parties: Westermann Family and
Hamilton Unified School District. Under negotiation: Price and terms of payment.

Report out actions taken in closed session.

ADJOURNMENT:



™



AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

This Agreement is made and entered into on , 2018, by and between
Hamilton Unified School District, hereinafter referred to as “District,” and Dannis Woliver
Kelley, a professional corporation, hereinafter referred to as “Attorney.”

WHEREAS, District desires to retain Attorney to provide legal services associated
with considering and calling a bond election in 2018 to benefit the District’s schools and the
issuance and sale of general obligation bonds thereafter.

In consideration of the promises and the mutual agreements hereinafter contained, District
and Attorney agree as follows:

A. SCOPE OF WORK AND PAYMENT

District appoints Attorney to represent, advise, and counsel it from September 19,
2018, and continuing thereafter in connection with the District's 2018 general obligation
bond election and bond issuance ("Bond Services”) as more specifically described in
Attachment A hereto, and incorporated herein by reference. Attorney may represent
District in other legal matters and provide other services as desired pursuant to a separate
Professional Services Agreement. Bond Services shall be compensated in the manner

described in Attachment A.

The performance of Bond Services rendered prior to the date of this Agreement is
hereby ratified and approved.

B. TERM AND TERMINATION

1. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence as of its date of
execution and shall expire on the earlier of: the final sale of bonds ("Bonds”) from the 2018
authorization or five years after commencement of the Agreement, whichever occurs first. If
at the time of expiration there remains additional general obligation bond issuance authority,
this Agreement may be renewed for additional terms, subject to District’s termination rights

described below.

2. Termination of Attorney. District may terminate DWK without cause
upon 30 days’ written notice to Attorney; provided, however, that if District terminates these
services after Attorney has rendered Bond Services, then District shall pay Attorney for
services rendered, at the rate of $310 per hour for attorneys and $125 per hour for paralegals,
plus DWK'’s out-of-pocket expenses.

C. OTHER PROVISIONS

1. Malpractice Coverage. Attorney agrees to prepare periodic reviews of
relevant court decisions, legislation, and other legal issues. Attorney agrees to keep current
and in force at all times a policy covering incidents of legal malpractice.

2. Performance of Obligations. District shall be truthful with Attorney,
cooperate with Attorney, keep Attorney informed of developments, perform the obligations it
has agreed to perform under this Agreement.

3. Food/Meals. Occasionally Attorney may provide District officials and/or
employees with working lunches or meals when working with District officials and/or

Agreement for Professional Services Page 1
DWK SF 914733v1



employees. Attorney may provide such food or meals without additional charge in exchange
for the consideration provided by the District under this Agreement.

4, Indenendent Contractor. It is expressly understood and agreed to by
both parties that Attorney, while carrying out and complying with any of the terms and
a

conditions of this Agreement, is an independent contractor and is not an employee of the

District.

5. Use of Subconsultants/SubContractors. Attorney uses the services of

legal sub-consultants and independent contractors from time to time on finance transactions,
including federal taxation specialists, which costs are paid in full by Attorney without additional
expense to District. District consents to the use of such sub-consultants or independent
contractors at Attorney’s discretion.

6. Conflicts of Interest. Because Attorney represents many school and
community college districts, county offices of education, joint powers authorities, SELPAs,
other educational entities, and bond underwriters on an occasional basis, conflicts of interest
may arise in the course of Attorney’s representation. If Attorney becomes aware of any
potential or actual conflicts of interest, Attorney will inform the District of the conflict and
comply with the legal and ethical requirements to fulfill its duties of loyalty and confidentiality
to District. If District has any question about whether Attorney has a conflict of interest in its
representation of District in any matter, it may contact Attorney or other legal counsel for
clarification.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have signed this Agreement for Professional
Services.

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Charles Tracy Date
Superintendent

DANNIS WOLIVER KELLEY

"W 22 September 20, 2018

Matthew Juhl-Darlington Date
Attorney at Law

Agreement for Professional Services Page 2
DWK SF 914733v1



I

ATTACHMENT “A” -SCOPE OF WORK AND FEES

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCOPE OF WORK

Attorney shall provide the following Bond Services to District with regard to a 2018 general
obligation bond election.

A. Pre-Election Services

Pre-Election Services shall begin upon engagement of Attorney and shall be concluded at such
time as the District certifies its official vote canvass. Pre-Election Services provided by
Attorney shall include the following:

>

>

Assistance with voter polling and election planning and research in advance of calling
an election;

Preparation of a timetable setting forth the actions required to accomplish the election,
and coordination with the County election officials to ensure that the necessary legal
requirements are satisfied;

Coordination with finance team and preparation of Governing Board resolutions
required to call the election, including assistance with the drafting of the ballot
propositions and ancillary materials;

Confer as needed with the County Registrar of Voters regarding requirements for the
proper call of election;

Attend all meetings of the District, as well as any administrative meetings at which the
election and financing proceedings are to be discussed, when requested to attend or
when attendance is deemed necessary for the proper planning or conduct of the
financing proceedings

Review of the ballot arguments to be prepared by or on behalf of the District;
Consultation with the District and its staff, the County and its staff, and the District’s
financial consultant(s) concerning the election proceedings and campaign law
requirements, including review of all District communications, and planned activities,
for compliance with legal requirements;

Preparation of the notices, affidavits and certificates required by law for conducting
the election.

B. Election Support Services

Bond Issuance Services shall commence after, and only in the event of, a successful bond
election within the District. Bond Issuance Services have two service components: Bond
Counsel Services and Disclosure Counsel Services.

1. Bond Counsel Services. Services to issue bonds (“"Bonds”) after a successful
election (“Bond Counsel Services”) will include the following:

> Advice regarding the initial formation and creation of a Bond Oversight
Committee and assistance in establishing policies to manage the
committee, including providing sample policies, bylaws and forms for
consideration;

DWK SF 914735v1



> Consultation with the District and its staff, the County, and the District’s
municipal advisor concerning the Bonds and the timing, terms and
structure of the offering(s);

> Preparation of the proceedings to authorize the Bonds, including the
resolutions of the District Governing Board requesting that the County
Board of Supervisors issue the Bonds in the name of the District (if
necessary); the resolution of the County Board of Supervisors setting
forth the terms and conditions of the Bonds and their form, date,
denominations and maturity (if necessary); and preparation of the
proceedings for the sale of the bonds by competitive or negotiated sale;

> Attendance at up to two (2) in-person meetings of the District Governing
Board and with the District’'s municipal advisor and other consultants
regarding the issuance and sale of the Bonds, as needed or requested;
Coordination of the full finance team as necessary for the review of
documents and finance plans;

> Examination of the proofs of the Bonds, preparation of the final closing
papers, organization and conduct of the Bond closing, and the rendering
of a final legal opinion at the time of delivery of and receipt of payment
for the bonds; Review of post-closing iegal compliance requirements
with the District.

2. Disclosure Counsel Services. Services to assure compliance of the Bonds with
federal securities laws ("Disclosure Counsel Services”) will include the
following:

> Preparation of the Preliminary Official Statement, the final Official
Statement, and continuing disclosure certificate which accompanies the
latter, for use in marketing and sale of the bonds;

> Delivery of a disclosure counsel opinion at closing; and
> Review of Continuing Disclosure filing status pursuant to MSRB Rule
15¢2-12.
II. FEES
A. Pre-Election Services

Fees for Pre-Election Services will be charged on an hourly basis at the rate of $230
per hour for associates, $275 per hour for special counsel and Of Counsel attorneys, and $300
per hour for shareholders. Fees shall be due and owing regardiess of the outcome of the
bond election, but at the request of District will not be billed until the election has occurred.

B. Election Support Services

Fees for Election Support Services shall be provided on request and charged at an
hourly basis at the rate of $230 per hour for associates, $275 per hour for special counsel
and Of Counsel attorneys, and $300 per hour for shareholders. Fees shall be due and owing
regardiess of the outcome of the bond election, but will not be billed until the election has
occurred.

District further agrees to reimburse Attorney for actual and necessary expenses
(“"Expenses”) and costs with respect to providing the above services, including travel costs,
support services such as copying costs, express postage, and facsimile transmittals. District

A-2
DWK SF 914735v1



agrees that such actual and necessary expenses may vary according to special circumstances
necessitated by request of District or emergency conditions which occasionally arise.

Substantive communications advice (telephone, voice-mail, e-mail) is billed in a
minimum increment of one-tenth (.1) of an hour, except for the first such advice in any
business day, which is charged in a minimum of three-tenths (.3) of an hour. In the course
of travel it may be necessary for Attorney to work for and bill other clients while in transit.

Attorney shall send District a statement for fees and costs monthly, unless District
requests an alternate arrangement. Attorney's statements shall clearly state the basis thereof,
including the amount, rate and basis for calculations or other methods of determination of
Attorney's fees. District shall pay Attorney's statements within thirty (30) days after each
statement's date. Upon District office's request for additional statement information, Attorney
shall provide a bill to District no later than ten (10) days following the request. District is
entitled to make subsequent requests for bills at intervals of no less than thirty (30) days
following the initial request.

C. Bond Counsel Services

For each separate series of bonds issued during the term of this Agreement, Bond
Counsel Services shall be compensated a set fee of $35,000.00 per transaction, plus
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses in an amount not-to-exceed $1,500. Fees shall
not be due and owing unless and until Bonds are issued, and shall be paid or reimbursed from

Bond proceeds.
D. Disclosure Counsel Services

For each separate series of Bonds issued during the term of this Agreement, Disclosure
Counsel Services shall be compensated a set fee of $20,000.00 per transaction, plus
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses in an amount not-to-exceed $1,000. Fees shall
not be due and owing unless and until Bonds are issued, and shall be paid or reimbursed from

Bond Proceeds.
III. EXCLUDED SERVICES

The following additional services are exciuded from the Scope of Work and are subject to the
payment provisions on an hourly basis or as otherwise agreed by the Parties in writing. These
include:

> Questions related to bonds outstanding prior to the date of Attorney’s
engagement by the District;

> Post-closing legal advice requiring significant legal research;

> Capital project planning, implementation, construction, and litigation;

> Ongoing advice and assistance related to a bond oversight committee;

> Applications for Private Letter Rulings from the IRS;

> Negotiation of investment contracts;

> In-person participation in rating agency meetings or bond insurance agencies
outside California; and

> Excluded expenses enumerated in the Professional Services Agreement.

In no event will Attorney provide campaign-related legal services to the District or any
campaign committee formed to support a bond measure campaign of the District under this
Agreement or any other Agreement.

A-3
DWK SF 914735v1



RESOLUTION No. 18-19-105
BEFORE THE HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT GOVERNING BOARD
AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION IN THE RURAL SCHOOL BUS PILOT PROJECT

WHEREAS, on October 3, 2018, the Board of Directors of the Hamilton Unified School District met in
regular session; and

WHEREAS, California Climate Investments are funded by the State proceeds from Cap-and-Trade
auctions. These funds provide an opportunity for the State to invest in projects that help achieve our
climate goals and provide benefits to disadvantaged communities; and

WHEREAS, the California Air Resources Board (CARB) created the Rural School Bus Pilot Project
(RSBPP), and has allocated funding from the California Climate Investments; and

WHEREAS, the North Coast Unified Air Quality Management District (NCUAQMD) has been selected
to administer the RSBPP on behalf of CARB; and

WHEREAS, the NCUAQMD requires the submission of information, on standardized forms (application
forms), to determine eligibility and to rank proposed projects; and

WHEREAS, if selected to receive funding, in order to participate in the RSBPP, the grantee is required
to enter into an agreement with the NCUAQMD wherein the fulfillment of terms and conditions is
required in order to receive the funding.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Governing Board of the Hamilton Unified School
District authorizes the submission of applications for Rural School Bus Pilot Project grants; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that if selected for funding, the Superintendent is authorized to enter
into binding contracts on behalf of the school district and to act, as needed, to ensure the contract terms

are satisfied.

On motion of , Seconded by

, the foregoing resolution is hereby PASSED and
ADOPTED BY the Hamilton Unified School District Governing Board on this 3" day of October, 2018
by the following votes:

AYES: ABSTAIN:

NOES: ABSENT:

Hamilton Unified School District

Gabriel Leal, Board President

ATTEST:

Wendall Lower, Clerk of the Board



